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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR. nm DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURlTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintift; 

v. 

THOMAS J. PALERMO. et al.. 

CONSENT 01' DEPENDANT THOMAS J. PALERMO 

1. Defendant Thomu J. Palenno ("Defendant") waives service of a summons and 

the complaint in this action. enten a general appearance. and admits the Court's jurisdiction owr 

Defendant and over the subject matter of tis action. 

2. Without admittina or denying tbe allegations of the complaint (except as pmvided 

baeiJl in paraaraph 11 and except II to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, wbicb 

DefendaDt admits). Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the F'mal Judgmmt in-die form 

attached hereto (the "Pinal Judgment") and incoJpOrated by reference herein. whi~ amona other 

things: 

{a) pmnanently restrains and enjoins Defendant ftom violation of Sections 

[15 U.S.C. §§ 71j(b) and 71n(e)) and Rules 101>-S and 14e-3 themmder 

[17 c.F.R. §§ 240.tOb-5 and 240.l4e-3J; 

(b) orders Defendant to pay disgorgement in the amount of $124,528, plus 

prejudpient interest thereon in the amount ofS14,067; and 
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(c) orders Detendant to pay a civil penal1)' in the amount of $124,528 under 

Section 21A of the Exchange Ad. [15 U.S.C. § 78u-l ]. 

3. Defendant aareea that he shall not seek or accept, directly or in.dhecdy, 

reimbmsement or indemnification fiom any source. includin& but not limited to payment made 

pursuant to any insurance policy, with ieprd to any civil penal1)' amounts that Defendant pays 

pursuant to the F"mal Judgment, regmdless of whether such penal1)' amounts or any part thereof 

me added to a distn'bution fund or otherwise usec1·ror the benefit of investon. Defendant ftlrtber 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert. or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with ieprd to any 

federal, state, or ·tocat tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Fmal 

Judpaeat, ieprdless of whether such penal1)' amounts or any part thereof are added to a 

distribution fbnd or otherwise used for tbe benefit of investon. 

4. Defendant waives the en1r)' of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to 

R.ule S2 of the Fedend Rules of C-Ml Plocedme. 

5. Detendant waives the right, if any. to a jury trial and to appeal fiom the mtry of 

the Final 1vc1ament. 

6. Defendant.entera into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats. 

ofrm, pmmises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any 

member, officer, employee, agent. or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

enter into this Consent. 

7. Defendant aareea that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Fmal J•ldpwm 

with the same foJce and effect~ if tully set forth therein. 
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8. Defendant wiD not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judpient on the ground. 

if any exists. that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Ruta of Civil Proceclme. and 

hereby waives any objection based thereon. 

9. Defendant waives service of the Ymal Judgment and agrees that entry of the Fmal 

Judgment by the Coult and filina with the Cledt of the Comt will constitute notice to Defendant 

of its tenns and conditions. Defendant fiutber apees to provide coume1 for the Commission. 

witbiD thilty days after the Fmal Judgment is filed with the Clat of the Court, with an aftidavit 

or dedaradoa stadn1 that Defendant has mceived and read a copy otthe F'mal Judpwnt 

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. § 202.S(f), this Consent JeSOlves only the claims 

asmted apinst Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no pmmise or 

represe11tation bas been made by the Commission or any member, oflicer, employee, agent. or 

npeaentative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or 

may aise from the facts underlyins this action or immunity from any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopaady based upon the settlement 'Of 1hia PJOC='in& 

includina die imposition of my remedy or civil penalty herein. De&nd8nt fUrtbei acknowledges 

tbal the Comt's entry of a permanent iqjunction may have collateral consequences under fede!al 

or state law and the rules and regulations of self-rep)atory orpniDtions, liomsina boatds. and 

other replatory orpnintiom. Such collateral consequences include, but an not limited to, a 

statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a 

member o( a self-regulatory orpniDt1oD. This statutory disqualification bas consequences that 

are separate tiom any sanction imposed in an administradve proceeding. In addition, in any 

disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the enay of the injunction in this 
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action, Defendant understands that he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of 

the complaint in this action. 

11. Defendant understands and apees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.ll 

§ 202..S(e). which pmvides in part that it is the Commission's policy "not to permit a defendant 

or respondent to consent to ajudpient or order that imposes a sanction while denyina the 

alleptions in the complaint or order for proceedings," and "'a refbsal to admit the allegations is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or iespondmt states dud be neither admits nor denies 

the alleptions." As pan of Defendant's ap:ement to comply with the terms of Section 202.S(e). 

Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement 

denyins, directly or indirectly, any alleption in 1he complaint or creatin& the impression that the 

complaint is without factual basis; (ii) will not make or permit to be made any public statement 

to the effect that Defendant does not admit the alleptions of the complaint, or that this Consent 

contains no admission of the alleptions, without also~ that Defendant does not deny the 

alleptiou; (m1 upon the fi1ina of this Consent.· Defendant hereby withdraws any papen filed in 

this action to the extent that they cleay any allegation in the complaint; and (iv) stipulates solely 

for pmposes of exceptiom to discbarp set forth in Section 523 of tbe Bankruptcy Code, 11 

U.S.C. §S23. that the allegations in the complaint are tme, and further, that any debt for 

disppmen.t, prejudgment inWest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under tbe 

rmal Judgment or any other judplent. order, consent order, decne or settlement aareement 

entaed in connection with this pmceedin& is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the Cecleral 

seem.ides laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Banbuptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §S23(aX19). If Defendant breaches this 

agnsement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this 
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action to its active clocket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant's: (i) testimonial 

obliptiom; or (ii) right to take lepl or factual positions in litigation or other legal poreedinp 

in which the Commission is not a party. 

12. Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the 

Small BusUwa Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to 

seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States actin1 in bis or 

her ofticial capacity, dilecdy or indirectly, teimbursement of aatomey's fees or other fees. 

expeases. or costs expended by Defendant to defend apinst this action. For these purposes. 

Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this acdon since the parti• have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

13. In connection with this action and any ielatedjudicial or administrative 

proceedina or investigation~ by the Commission or to which the C.Ommission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission statr at such times and 

places• the std'requesta upon R110nablo notice; (ii) will accept service by mail or fscsimile 

transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by tbe Commission for documen11 or testimony at 

depositions, hearinp. or trials, or in connection with any related inwsdgadoa by Commission 

staft (di) appoints Def"endant's undasipcd attorney u agent to receive service of such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on 

ssvice contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil ProcedUle and any applicable local 

rules, provided that the party mquestina the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, Jodgina. and 

subsistence expenses at the then-prevailina U.S. Oovemment per diem rates; and (v) consents to 

personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of 

enforcing any such subpoena. 

s 
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14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the 

Court for signature· and entry without further notice. 

15. Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the 

purpose of enfQrcing the tenns of the Final Judgment. 

Approved as to fotl1l: 

Qwf.&J~ 
Carl F. Schoepp!, E~ 
Schoepp! & Burke, P.A. 
4651 N. Federal Highway 
Boca Raton, FL 3343 l 
Counsel for Thomas J. Palenno 

Commission e>epir~: 
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IN nm UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR.T 
FOR nlB DISTRICT OF NBW JERSEY 

SBCURITIBS AND BXCHANOB COMMISSION. 

Pl~ 

v. 

1HOMAS J. PALERMO, et al., 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DUENDANTTBOMAS I. PALERMO 

The Securities and Excbanae Commission havina filed a Complaint and Defendant 

'l1lomas J. Palenno bavin& entaed a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment 

without admittina or deayina the alleptions of the Complaint (except 11 to jurisdiction and 
• 

except• otherwile provided herein in puapapb V); waived findinp of fact and conclusions of 

law; and waived any right to appeal ftom this Ymal Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADruDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's apma. servants. employees. attorneys. and all penons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Fmal Judgment by personal service or 

otherwile are pennanently restrained and enjoined &om violatin& directJy or indirecdy, Section 

lO(b) of the Securides Bxcbanp Act of 1934 (the "Exdump Act") (IS U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule IOb-S promulgated thaeunde.r (17 C.F.R. § 240.lOb-S], by usina any means or 
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instnunentality of interstate commerce.. or of the mails, or of lily f'adlity of any national 

securities exchanp. in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any UDtlUe statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in Older to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleadina; or 

(c) to enpp in any act. practice, or course of business which operates or would 

opeaate as a tiaud or deceit uPon any person. 

II. 

IT JS HEREBY FUR.1HER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents. servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons ill active conceit or 

participadon with them who receive actual notice of this Ymal Judgment by personal ~ce or 

otherwise are panwnendy restrained and eqjoined tiom violadna Section 14(e) ·of the Bxdvmge 

Act (JS U.S.C. t 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3) promulptecl'thcreunder. in 

connection with any tender off• or request or invitation for tenders, &om enpgin1 in any 

fiaudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities couverb"ble into or 

exchangeable for any such securides or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securitia while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender ofter that Defendant knows or bu 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know bas been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offerina person; the issuer of the 

securities sousht or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offerina 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

pmcbase or· sale such infonnation and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) ccnnmunicatina mate.rial. nonpublic informalion reladna to a tender offer. 

which Defendant knows or bas reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

bas reason to know baa been acquired directly or indirectly fiom die 

o1fering person; the issuer of the securities soupt or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any otlicer, director, partner, employee, advisor. or other 

person acting oil behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under chcumstances in which it ia reasonably-foreseeable tbat such 

coiumunication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of secmitiea in the 

mamw described ·m subparaaraph (a) above. except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in aood faith 

(i) to the officers. directon. partnenl or employees of the 

ofrerins person. to its advison or to other persons, involved 

in the plannin& financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) · to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its ofticers, directon. putnerS, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning. financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer. or 

(ui) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regu1adon promulgated thereunder .. 

ID. 

rr JS FUR.1HER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorpment of S124,S21, repmenting profits pined as a result of tbe conduct alleged in 

the Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of Sl 4,067, and a civil 

penalty in the amount of $124,521pursuanttoSection21A of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 

7811-I]. Defeadaat shall satisfy this obligation by payina $263,123 to the Securities and 

Exchange Commission within 14 days after entry of this Final Judgment. 

Ddmdant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfs/Pedwire instructions upon request. Pa),'Dlent may also be made directly 

fiom a bank account via Pay.gov tluouah the SBC website at 

hUJ>;lbyww,sec,p/@bout{offices/oftn.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Bntaprise Serriees Center 
Accoun1I Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Qklahoma City, OK 73169 

and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case 1itle, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Thomas J. Palermo as ·a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Fmal Judgment. 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

iclentifJinl infonnation to the Commission's counsel in this action. By makina this payment, 

Defendant ielinquisJm all legal and equitable right, tide,~ intaest in such ftmds and no part 

of the ftmds shall be retumecl to Defendant. The Commission shall send the fUnds paid pursuant 

to this Fmal Judpient to the United States Treasury. 

1be Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disprgement and prejudpient 

interest by movin& for civil contempt (and/or tbrouah other collection procedures authorized by 

Jaw) at any time after 14 days followina ently of this Ymal J1Jdament. Defendant shall pay post 

judameat interest on.any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FUR.THBR. ORDERED, ADJUDGED. AND DBCRBED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fblly set fodb herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with aU of the UDdeltakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS PURnmt ORDERED, ADJUDG~, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

alleptions in tbe Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and fbrlher1 any debt for 

. disgorgement, prejudgment intenst. civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

rmal Judpient or any other judpient, order, consent order, decree or settlement qreement 

· entaed in connection with this pn>ceedina. is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 
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securities laws or any regulation or order issued 1Dlder such laws, as set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. f S23(aX19). . 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enfmdng the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedme. the Clerk is ordered to enter' this Ymal Judgment forthwith and without fiDther notice. 

6 
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IN nm UNITBD STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR nm DISTRICT OF NBW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

1HOMAS J. PALERMO. et al .. , 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT THOMAS J. PALERMO 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Thomas J. Palermo having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject mattetof tbis action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment 

without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and 
-

except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph V); waived findings of fact and conclusions of 

law; and waived any right to appeal from this Fmal Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees. attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are pennanendy restrained and enjoined ftom violating, directly or inc:lhecdy, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.lOb-S], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails. or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defiaud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

D. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defenctant•s agents, servants. employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined &om violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act [IS U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or bas 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirecdy from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such infonnation and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic infonnation relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or bas reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has.been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

Ill. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of S 124,528, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in 

the Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount ofS14,067, and a civil 

penalty in the amount ofS124,S28 pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 

78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this obligation by paying $263,123 to the Securities and 

Exchange Commission within 14 days after entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http;//WWW.sec·lov/about/offices/ofin.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check. or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Thomas I. Palenno as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this' Final Judgment. 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying infonnation to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, ~ interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt.(and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Ymal Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961 . . 

IV. 

IT IS FURTimR. .ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakinp and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of 

· exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 
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securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy C~ 11 U.S.C. § S23(aX19). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Comt shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 
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